
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

 

CABINET 
at the Council Offices, Farnborough on 

Tuesday, 14th December, 2021 at 7.00 pm 
 

 
To: 

Cllr D.E. Clifford, Leader of the Council 
Cllr K.H. Muschamp, Deputy Leader and Customer Experience and Improvement 

Portfolio Holder 
 

Cllr Marina Munro, Planning and Economy Portfolio Holder 
Cllr A.R. Newell, Democracy, Strategy and Partnerships Portfolio Holder 

Cllr M.L. Sheehan, Operational Services Portfolio Holder 
Cllr P.G. Taylor, Corporate Services Portfolio Holder 

Cllr M.J. Tennant, Major Projects and Property Portfolio Holder 
 

 
Enquiries regarding this agenda should be referred to Chris Todd, Democracy and 

Community, on 01252 398825 or e-mail: chris.todd@rushmoor.gov.uk 
 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST –  
 
Under the Council’s Code of Conduct for Councillors, all Members are required to 
disclose relevant Interests in any matter to be considered at the meeting.  Where the 
matter directly relates to a Member’s Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other 
Registrable Interest, that Member must not participate in any discussion or vote on 
the matter and must not remain in the room unless they have been granted a 
dispensation (see note below). If the matter directly relates to ‘Non-Registrable 
Interests’, the Member’s participation in the meeting will depend on the nature of the 
matter and whether it directly relates or affects their financial interest or well-being or 
that of a relative, friend  or close associate, applying the tests set out in the Code. 

Public Document Pack



 
NOTE: 
On 27th May, 2021, the Council’s Corporate Governance, Audit and Standards 
Committee granted dispensations to Members appointed by the Council to the Board 
of the Rushmoor Development Partnership and as Directors of Rushmoor Homes 
Limited. 
 

2. MINUTES – (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 16th November, 2021 (copy 
attached). 
 

3. BUSINESS RATES - DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF APPLICATION – (Pages 5 - 
24) 
(Cllr Paul Taylor, Corporate Services Portfolio Holder) 
 
To consider Report No. FIN2127 (copy attached), which gives details of an 
application for discretionary rate relief in respect of Blucando Limited. 
 

4. REPROVISIONING OF TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION – (Pages 25 - 30) 
(Cllr Marina Munro, Planning and Economy Portfolio Holder) 
 
To consider Report No. FIN2135 (copy attached), which set out details of a project to 
secure replacement hostel accommodation for use by the Council. 
 

5. REPORT OF URGENCY DECISION - NOS. 35-39 HIGH STREET, ALDERSHOT – 
(Pages 31 - 34) 
(Cllr Martin Tennant, Major Projects and Property Portfolio Holder) 
 
To consider decisions made under the Council’s arrangements for urgency and 
exceptions to ensure the safety of a Council building and maintain progress on the 
Union Yard regeneration scheme (Report No. ED2102 and Record of Executive 
Decision attached). 
 
 

----------- 



- 27 - 

CABINET 
 
Meeting held on Tuesday, 16th November, 2021 at the Council Offices, Farnborough 
at 7.00 pm. 
 
Voting Members 

Cllr D.E. Clifford, Leader of the Council 
 

Cllr Marina Munro, Planning and Economy Portfolio Holder 
Cllr A.R. Newell, Democracy, Strategy and Partnerships Portfolio Holder 

Cllr M.L. Sheehan, Operational Services Portfolio Holder 
Cllr P.G. Taylor, Corporate Services Portfolio Holder 

Cllr M.J. Tennant, Major Projects and Property Portfolio Holder 
 
The Cabinet considered the following matters at the above-mentioned meeting. All 
executive decisions of the Cabinet shall become effective, subject to the call-in 
procedure, from 29th November, 2021. 
 

42. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – 
 
Having regard to the Council’s Code of Conduct for Councillors, no declarations of 
interest were made. 
 

43. MINUTES – 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 19th October, 2021 were 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman. 
 

44. COUNCIL BUSINESS PLAN AND RISK REGISTER QUARTERLY UPDATE JULY 
- SEPTEMBER 2021/22 – 
(Cllr Adrian Newell, Democracy, Strategy and Partnerships Portfolio Holder) 
 
The Cabinet received Report No. ACE2106, which set out progress in delivering the 
Council Business Plan projects during the second quarter of 2021/22. Members were 
informed that progress against eighteen key projects was included in the Report, 
along with the Council’s business performance monitoring information and the 
Council’s Corporate Risk Register. It was reported that, at the end of the second 
quarter, 56% of live projects were on track, with the remainder showing an amber 
status. 
  
In response to a question, it was confirmed that 172 tonnes of food waste had been 
collected from households during the first three weeks of operation. 
  
The Cabinet NOTED the progress made towards delivering the Council Business 
Plan, as set out in Report No. ACE2106, and the risks identified within the Corporate 
Risk Register in October, 2021. 
 

Pack Page 1

AGENDA ITEM No. 2



- 28 - 

 
45. SOUTHWOOD COUNTRY PARK - BUSINESS CASE FOR REPURPOSING 

EXISTING BUILDINGS – 
(Cllr Martin Tennant, Major Projects and Property Portfolio Holder) 
 
The Cabinet considered Report No. PETS2120, which set out a request for capital 
funding for the detailed design and development of the Southwood Country Park 
Visitor Centre and Cafe in Farnborough. 
 
Members were informed that the feasibility study and initial design development in 
respect of the Visitor Centre and Café had now been completed successfully. The 
proposed development would make use of the existing building and would 
incorporate many environmentally sustainable features, including a green roof, 
ground source heating and PV panels. Members were informed that the current 
cost of the scheme was lower than the figure quoted previously. Members were 
advised that the Report carried an incorrect figure at paragraph 3.5 and that the 
total cost project cost, including initial design and development costs, was 
£1,074,000 and not £1,027,000 as stated.  
 
In discussing the proposals, the Cabinet expressed strong support for the 
development of the new facility and noted that the Park was had proving popular with 
local residents.   

 
The Cabinet  

 
(i) NOTED that 

 
(a) an agreement for lease, with a suitably experienced café operator, 

would be entered into by 9th February, 2022, as set out in Report No. 
PETS2120, as amended at the meeting; 

 
(b) planning permission had not yet been granted for the scheme, with an 

application due to be submitted in January, 2022; and 
 

(ii) RECOMMENDED TO THE COUNCIL that £901,000 be added to the Capital 
Programme for the Southwood Country Park Visitor Centre and Café, noting 
the capital financing implications set out in paragraph 4.14 of the Report. 

 
46. REVIEW OF LOCAL LAND CHARGES FEES – 

(Cllr Paul Taylor, Corporate Services Portfolio Holder) 
 
The Cabinet considered Report No. LEG2104, which set out a proposed revised 
scheme of fees for the Council’s Local Land Charges service.  

 
Members were informed that the fees and charges had not been reviewed for some 
years and that the new fee structure would enable the service to demonstrate full 
costs recovery. 
 
The Cabinet RESOLVED that the new fees, as set out in Report No. LEG2104, be 
approved. 
 

Pack Page 2



- 29 - 

 
 
The Meeting closed at 7.25 pm. 
 
 
 

CLLR D.E. CLIFFORD, LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 
 

----------- 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Pack Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

CABINET 
 

COUNCILLOR PAUL TAYLOR 
CORPORATE SERVICES PORTFOLIO HOLDER  

14TH December 2021 
 
KEY DECISION? 
YES/NO 
 

REPORT NO. FIN2127 

 
BUSINESS RATES – DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF 

APPLICATION 
 

 
SUMMARY 
 
This report sets out one new application for Discretionary Rate Relief under the 
council’s Discretionary Rate Relief Policy.  
 
The policy was introduced under the Localism Act 2011 to provide the Council 
with the ability to discount business rates to all organisations in the borough, 
where they provide a benefit to the community and not limited to Charities and 
Not-for-Profit Organisations. 
 
The main aims of the policy are to: - 
 

▪ Provide facilities to certain priority groups such as the elderly, disabled, 
minority groups and childcare; or 

▪ Create new employment opportunities; or 
▪ Bring social environmental, or economic benefit to the community; or 
▪ Contribute towards the sustainable development of the borough. 

 
The application is from Blucando Limited, occupying Unit 11, Farnborough 
Business Centre, who are taking on additional space, extending into Unit 10. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Cabinet are recommended to approve the award of 75% Discretionary Rate 
Relief to Blucando Limited for the period of one year. 
 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 
 

▪ Outline the background and financial implications of Discretionary Rate 
Relief; and 

 
▪ Consider a new application for Discretionary Rate Relief. 

 
 

Pack Page 5

AGENDA ITEM No. 3



 

 

2. BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 The Local Government Finance Act 1988, as amended provides local 
authorities with discretionary powers to grant relief from non-domestic rates 
on properties occupied by charities and other non-profit organisations. 

 
2.2 A local authority has discretion to grant “top up” relief of 20% to charities 

that had received 80% mandatory relief. 
 

2.3 In addition, an authority can grant relief of up to 100% to non-profit making 
organisations. 
 

2.4 The Localism Act 2011 introduced a new power for local authorities to award 
a local Discretionary Relief, in any circumstances, where it is in the council 
taxpayers’ interest to do so. 
 

2.5 In April 2017, cabinet agreed an amendment to our existing Discretionary 
Rate Relief Policy to enable the council to award relief to all organisations 
in the borough and not limited to charities and not-for-profit organisations. 
 

2.6 The amended policy is known as “Discretionary Rate Relief – For charities, 
not-for-profit organisations and other specified organisations under the 
Localism Act 2011”. Full details of this policy can be found in Appendix 1. 
 

2.7 The main aims of the amended policy are to: - 
 
▪ Provide facilities to certain priority groups such as the elderly, disabled, 

minority groups and early years childcare; or 
▪ Create new employment opportunities; or 
▪ Bring social, environmental, or economic benefit to the community; or 
▪ Contribute towards the sustainable development of the borough. 

 
2.8 With the amendment to the policy the council can encourage businesses to 

the borough thus providing economic development.  
 
3. APPLICATION FOR RELIEF 
 
3.1 This application is from Blucando Limited. 
 
3.2 Full details of Blucando Limited application can be seen in Appendix 2 of 

this report. However, a summary of Blucando Limited and their application 
is detailed in points 3.3 to 3.11 below. 
 

3.3 Blucando Limited currently occupy Unit 11 Farnborough Business Centre, 
but they are extending their business and knocking through to Unit 10, which 
will double their capacity, but will also increase their Business Rates 
Liability. 

 
3.4 The nature of Blucando Limited’s business is comprised of two brands: -  
 

Pack Page 6



 

 

▪ Blucando Ltd – provide IT support services to businesses UK-wide and 
residential customers in Rushmoor and the surrounding towns. 

 
▪ Untold Gaming – a specialist in designing and building customer gaming 

PC’s for all levels; beginners to professional gamers. 
 
For both brands, Blucando Limited use the premises they occupy for: - 

 
▪ Office space for their admin and technical support teams; 
▪ Storage space for parts and equipment; and 

 
▪ Workshop space for repairing, building and deploying new computers. 

 
3.5 Recruitment 
 

Blucando Limited moved the business to the borough four years ago to be 
closer to the two colleges in Farnborough. Since then, they have increased 
their headcount by 400%, with revenue growing to match. 
 
Blucando Ltd are involved with a number of initiatives with the Farnborough 
College of Technology, Rushmoor Borough Council, DWP and Enterprise 
M3 to create opportunities for people starting or developing a career in IT. 
 
▪ Blucando Limited plan to take placement students from the new T-Level 

and traditional work experience. 
 

▪ Blucando Limited currently have three Kickstart vacancies filled but are 
having to hold off on the last position due to limited space in their 
building. 

  
▪ Blucando Limited are poised to engage local secondary schools to offer 

work experience. 
 

▪ Blucando Limited have three planned full-time vacancies to advertise 
before the end of the year. 

 
▪ In addition, to the above, Blucando Limited are also considering 

launching an apprenticeship scheme in the next academic year. 
 
Due to lack of space, Blucando Limited are unable to proceed. Once the 
additional office space is live this month, they will be able to accommodate 
more people. Blucando Limited have signed a new combined lease on Units 
10 and 11 for 5 years. For their permanent roles, they are working with both 
local colleges, the local Job Centre and direct with DWP to identify 
candidates out of work in the area.  
 
Blucando Limited advise that “employment in one key area of the business 
that is expected to be attractive to the local community; Untold Gaming is 
only 8 months old and growing fast. Part of our new space is to 
accommodate budding engineers to help fulfil demand, with this being a 
fantastic entry into the IT industry for school and college leavers. The market 

Pack Page 7



 

 

for dedicated gaming PCs and equipment grew 69.7% from 2019 to 2020 
and similar growth is expected for the next five years, so we expect 
employment opportunities to increase in this sector in the South East, which 
has become the primary region for the UK gaming sector. 
https://ukie.org.uk/news/uk-games-industry-valuation-2020” 

 
3.6 Local Economy  

 
Blucando Limited are planning for 30% growth in new business over the 
next 18 months, supporting additional permanent roles. This potential rate 
relief allows them to accelerate their growth plans by bringing forward the 
required permanent vacancies to support their growth. 
 
Over the last four years, Blucando Limited have been working hard to forge 
relationships with organisations focused on improving economic growth in 
Rushmoor.  
 
The Managing Director is the technology industry representative working 
with Farnborough College of Technology on the development of T-Level 
qualifications, as well as providing regular talks to the students on careers 
in IT and supporting the career fairs. This supports their goal of “hiring local” 
by default. With over third of their team in the Rushmoor area, and all but 
one living in directly neighbouring towns.  
 
To support the local economy, Blucando Limited use local suppliers 
wherever possible sourced through local business networking events. One 
prime example is iPrint Anything in North Camp, who have provided 
Blucando Ltd with all their branding and printing needs for four years. Even 
for social events Blucando Ltd favour businesses in the Rushmoor area, 
such as go-karting, evening drinks, meals, and the occasional team reward 
of lunchtime pizza.  
 
Blucando Limited have recently expressed interest in providing well-needed 
work experience opportunities to secondary schools in the borough and 
exploring how we can provide additional support to on-site learning. 
 

3.7 Benefit to the Local Community 
 
With Blucando Limited commitment to creating employment and experience 
opportunities in the borough, they believe they are adding further value to 
local investment in education and the growth of opportunities in the 
technology industry.  

 
Blucando Limited hope is that they can assist by being be a focused 
resource for the borough, creating new opportunities in line with and building 
on the hard work already being done 
 

3.8 Other Businesses of a Similar Nature 
 
Blucando Limited advise that they are aware of a small number of 
companies offering IT support services to businesses, but they do not 

Pack Page 8



 

 

provide services to residential customers. Blucando Limited are also aware 
of a small number of micro-businesses providing services to residential 
customers but not businesses. In this respect, they believe they are unique 
in providing services to everyone in the borough.  
 
We are not aware of any professional businesses offering professional 
custom gaming PC design-and-build services. There are some people 
offering these services as sole traders. There are also others selling off-the-
shelf prebuilt units but, again, not a custom design-and-build service.  
 

3.9 The Corporate Services Portfolio Holder and Principal Revenues and 
Benefits Officer met on 20th October 2021 to discuss the application in more 
detail. 

 
3.10 Following this meeting, the Corporate Services Portfolio Holder has 

recommended an award of 75% Business Relief for a period of 12 months. 
This award effectively means that Blucando Limited’s business rates would 
remain at the level that they are currently paying prior to the expansion for 
a period of 12 months, allowing the business to grow at a faster rate.   
 
The reasons for this recommendation are as follows: -  

 
▪ The significance of the business and potential of the company. 

 
▪ Boosting the local economy as existing and new employees will bring 

spending power into the Borough.  
 

▪ Creating employment opportunities.  
 

▪ The support they provide to other local businesses. 
 

▪ The work that they are doing with the local schools and colleges. 
 
▪ The work that they have done with the Kickstart programme. 

 
▪ The recommendation to award 75% rate relief will essentially cover the 

increase in the rates payable following the expansion of office space. 
 
▪ The Corporate Services Portfolio Holder has reviewed Blucando 

Limited’s account and their turnover is increasing year on year. 
 
3.11 The Economy Team and Councillor Marino Munro, Planning and Economy 

Portfolio Holder are also supportive of this application. 
 
4. IMPLICATIONS  
 
 Financial Implications 
 
4.1  Since 1 April 2013, the Business Rates Retention scheme has introduced a 

fundamentally new set of arrangements for dealing with the cost of business 
rates. The cost to the Council of granting any Discretionary Rate Relief is 

Pack Page 9



 

 

most reliably estimated at being 40% of the value of the relief granted, 
although the cost is ultimately determined by a range of factors, such as the 
councils total rate receipts measured against its estimated threshold for 
growth and taking into account whether any payment levies or safety net 
contributions are payable or receivable. 

 
4.2 The remaining 60% of the costs will be met by Central Government (50%), 

Hampshire County Council (9%) and Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority 
(1%), under the Business Rates Retention Scheme.    

 
4.3 Any award of Discretionary Rate Relief is subject to state aid limits. From 

31 Dec 2020 we are governed by the Trade and Cooperation Agreement 
which allows a threshold of €380,000 over a 3-year period.  

 
Business Rates Position 
 
4.4 The current rateable value for Unit 11, Farnborough Business Centre is 

£13,500. Blucando Limited are entitled to partial Small Business Rates 
Relief with the business rates currently payable amounting to £3,368 per 
annum.  

 
4.5 The revised rateable value based on the extra space will be £27,000. Not 

only will the increased Rateable Value mean more Business Rates is 
payable, Blucando Ltd will lose their entitlement to Small Business Rate 
Relief, further increasing the business rates payable. 

 
 The revised business rates payable will be £13,473 per annum, an increase 

of 75%. 
 
4.6 Therefore, if Discretionary Rate Relief is to be awarded based on the full 

revised rateable value, the financial effect on the council is illustrated in the 
table below: -  

 
  

Percentage Relief 
Value to the 

Business 
(£) 

Cost to RBC 
(£) 

25% 3,368 1,347 

50% 6,736 2,694 

75% 10,105 4,042 

100% 13,473 5,389 

 
 
 Legal Implications 
 
4.7 Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988, as amended, 

enables Councils to grant Discretionary Rate Relief. 
 
4.8 The amended policy to award Discretionary Rate Relief enables the Council 

to award relief to any ratepayer and not limited to charities and not-for-profit 
organisations. This follows guidance and advice provided by the former 

Pack Page 10



 

 

Department of Communities and Local Government following the 
introduction of the Localism Act 2011. 

 
4.9 Full details of this guidance can be found at the following web link:   

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/localism-act-2011-overview 
 

To summarise, page 6 reads: - 
 
 “Greater local control over business rates 
 
 One of the most important things that councils can do to improve local life 

is to support the local economy. The Localism Act gives councils more 
freedom to offer business rate discounts - to help attract firms, investment 
and jobs. Whilst councils would need to meet the cost of any discount from 
local resources, they may decide that the immediate cost of the discount is 
outweighed by the long-term benefit of attracting growth and jobs to their 
area”. 

 
5. CONCLUSIONS 

 
5.1 In conclusion, the Cabinet is asked to approve the award of 75% 

Discretionary Rate Relief to Blucando Limited for a period of one year. 
 
5.2 The Corporate Services Portfolio Holder is supportive of the applications to 

the level set out in this report. 
 
5.3 The economy team and Councillor Marino Munro, Planning and Economy 

Portfolio Holder are also supportive of this application. 
 
5.3 This case was reviewed on its own merit and the decision was made using 

the Councils Discretionary Rate Relief Policy, which was approved by 
cabinet following guidance provided by the Department of Communities and 
Government. 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 
S47 Local Government Act 1988, as amended 
Localism Act 2011 
Full applicant case files in respect of the applicants 
Rushmoor Policy on Discretionary Rate Relief 
 
 
 
CONTACT DETAILS: 
 
Report Author – David May / david.may@rushmoor.gov.uk / 01252 398330 
Head of Service – David Stanley / david.stanley@rushmoor.gov.uk 01252 398440 
 
 

Pack Page 11

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/localism-act-2011-overview
mailto:david.may@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:david.stanley@rushmoor.gov.uk


 

 

 

Pack Page 12



Discretionary 
Rate Relief Policy
For charities, not-for-profit organisations and other 
specified organisations under the Localism Act 2011

Purpose of the policy1

To determine the level of Discretionary Business Rates Relief to be granted to certain 
defined ratepayers within the Rushmoor Borough Council area.

While we are obliged to grant relief to premises that fall within the mandatory category, 
we also have powers to grant discretionary relief and reductions to ratepayers, subject 
to certain criteria being met.

The Local Government Finance Act 1988 and subsequent legislation allows us to grant 
discretionary relief for premises occupied by charities and not-for-profit organisations 
that own or occupy them wholly or mainly for charitable purposes. 

Powers have also been granted under the Localism Act 2011, which allow for the 
granting of Discretionary Rate Relief to any premises where we feel it would be of 
benefit to the local community.

This document outlines the following areas:

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Details of receiving an award under the Discretionary Business Rates Relief Scheme
Our general policy for granting discretionary relief
Guidance on granting and administering relief
European Union requirements including provisions of state aid.

APPENDIX 1

Pack Page 13



Introduction2

The original purpose of Discretionary Rate Relief was to provide assistance where the property 
does not qualify for mandatory relief or to “top up” cases where ratepayers already receive 
mandatory relief.

Over recent years, and particularly since 2011, the discretionary relief provisions have been 
amended to allow the flexibility to provide more assistance to businesses and organisations.

Ratepayers are obliged to make a written application to us. We will expect all businesses 
to complete our application form and for the businesses to provide information, evidence, 
and audited accounts for us to determine whether relief should be awarded.

We are obliged to consider carefully every application on its own merits, taking into account 
the contribution that the organisation make to the amenities within Rushmoor. 

The granting of relief falls broadly into the following categories:

This policy concentrates on the granting of discretionary relief for charities which are already 
receiving mandatory relief, not-for-profit organisations whose main objectives are charitable 
and discretionary relief awarded under the Localism Act 2011.

Other reliefs available and are announced by government and for a temporary period.
As at the financial year 2018/ 19 they are currently:

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Discretionary relief – Charities who already receive mandatory relief
Discretionary relief – Premises occupied by not-for-profit organisations whose main 
objectives are charitable.
Discretionary relief – Granted under the Localism Act 2011 provisions

Local Newspaper Relief (from 1 April 2017 for a period of two years)
Local Public House Relief (from 1 April 2017 for a period of twos year)
Supporting Small Business Relief (from 1 April 2017, for a period of five years 
or until businesses pay their full rate charge)
Discretionary Rate Relief (revaluation) (from 1 April 2017 for a period of up to four years)

Our general approach to granting Discretionary Rate Relief3

In deciding which organisations should receive discretionary rate relief, we will consider 
the following factors and priorities:

3.1

That any award should support businesses, organisations and groups that help retain services 
in Rushmoor and not compete directly with existing businesses in an unfair manner.

It should help and encourage businesses, organisations, groups and communities to become 
self-reliant.

Pack Page 14



Sustaining a thriving economy

Supporting and empowering our communities and meeting local needs

A cleaner, greener and more cultural Rushmoor; and

Financially sound with services fit for the future

To enable appropriate organisations to start, develop or continue their activities, which deliver 
outcomes to the community, and that also relate to our priorities which, without granting relief, 
they would be unable to do so.

To assist us in delivering services which could not be provided otherwise.

To assist us to meet our priorities including:

Administration of discretionary relief – general approach4

The following section outlines the procedures followed by officers in granting, amending 
or cancelling discretionary relief.

4.1

Applications and evidence

All reliefs under this policy must be applied for. Applications forms are available both 
electronically and in hard copy format.

Applications should initially be made to the Revenues and Benefits Section and will be determined 
in accordance with this policy.

Completed application forms should be returned with the following information:

4.2

4.3

4.4

Evidence of being a registered charity or a copy of a letter from Her Majesty’s Revenue 
and Customs (HMRC) confirming that the organisation is treated as a charity for tax purposes 
(if appropriate).

A copy of the organisation’s equal opportunities policy (if the organisation has one).

A copy of the organisation’s constitution, rulebook or Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Audited or certified accounts for the last two years.

An up-to-date trading statement showing the current financial situation of the organisation.

Any other document the ratepayer wishes to be taken into account in support of their application.

Pack Page 15



Granting of relief

Variation of decision

Discretionary relief is granted from the beginning of the financial year in which 
the decision is made. 

Applications can be made up to six months after the end of the relevant financial year.

Members of our Cabinet will determine all applications, with recommendations made by the 
Cabinet member for Corporate and Democratic Services.

In all cases, we will notify the ratepayers of decisions made.

Where an application is successful, then the following will be notified to the ratepayer in writing.

Where relief is not granted, then an explanation of the decision will be provided in writing.

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

The amount of relief granted and the date from which it has been granted

If relief has been awarded for a specified period, the date on which it will end

The new chargeable amount

The details of any planned review dates and the notice that will be given in advance of a change 
to the level of relief granted; and 

A requirement that the applicant should notify us of any change in circumstances that may affect 
entitlement to relief.

Where the amount is to be increased due to a change in rate charge or a change in our decision, 
which increases the award, this will apply from the date of the increase in rate charge or the date 
determined by us as appropriate.

Where the amount is to be reduced due to a reduction in the rate charge or liability, including any 
reduction in rateable value or awarding of another relief or exemption, then this will apply from 
the date of decrease in the rate charge; and

Where the amount is to be reduced for any other reason, it will take effect at the expiry of 
a financial year, so that at least one year’s notice is given.

4.11

4.12

Variations in any decision will be notified to ratepayers as soon as practicable and will take 
effect as follows:

A decision may be revoked at any time. However, a one-year period of notice will be given and the 
change will take effect at the expiry of a financial year.

Pack Page 16



An authority can award up to an additional 20% top up relief to charities and community amateur 
sports clubs (CASCs) that have received the 80% mandatory relief, or

An authority can grant relief of up to 100% relief to certain non-profit making organisations 
that do not qualify for any mandatory relief due to not holding charitable status.

Authorities should have readily understood polices for deciding whether or not to grant 
relief, and for determining the amount of relief. They should not, however, adopt guidelines 
or rules which allows a case to be disposed of without any consideration as to its individual 
merits. Any criteria by which the individual case is judged should be made public to help 
interested individuals and bodies.

4.13

4.14

4.15

This will be important where the change would result in the amount of the award being reduced 
or cancelled. For example, where the premises become unoccupied or is used for a purpose other 
than that determined by us as eligible for relief.

Where a change of circumstances is reported, the relief will, if appropriate be revised or cancelled.

Where a change in circumstances is not reported and it is subsequently identified that it would 
have reduced the relief awarded, we reserve the right to remove any award completely.

Our policy for granting discretionary relief5

Discretionary Rate Relief - Charities who already received mandatory relief and organisations 
not established or conduced for profit whose main objectives are charitable

Section 47 of the LGFA 1988 provides for the granting of Discretionary Rate Relief 
for the following:

The Department of the Environment (DoE) issued a practice note in August 1990 to give guidance 
to authorities on the criteria they should take into consideration in the exercise of the discretion to 
grant rate relief. Rushmoor Borough Council’s Financial Support Sub Committee formerly adopted 
these guidelines in October 1993.

The practice note has now been supplemented by guidance issued by the Office of Deputy Prime 
Minister (ODPM) “Guidance on rate reliefs for charities and other non-profit making organisations” 
in December 2002, which in particular focuses on sports clubs. 

The practice note recommends that:

We have adopted the recommendations and guidelines in exercising our discretion in awarding 
discretionary rate relief to charities and not-for-profit organisations.

Where a ratepayer can demonstrate that the criteria is met, the period and value of relief granted 
will be solely at our discretion.

5.1

5.2

Pack Page 17



“The Localism Act gives councils more freedom to offer business rates discounts – to help 
attract firms, investment and jobs. While the local authority would need to meet the cost 
of any discount, it may be decided that the immediate cost of the discount is outweighed 
by the long-term benefit of attracting growth and jobs to their area”.

The ratepayer must not be entitled to mandatory rate relief;

The ratepayer must not be an organisation that could receive relief as a non-profit making 
organisation or as a sports club or similar;

The ratepayer must occupy the premises (no relief will be granted for unoccupied premises);

The premises and organisation must be of significant benefit to the residents of the borough 
and/or relieve the council of providing similar facilities;

Provide facilities to certain priority groups such as the elderly, disabled, minority groups and early 
years child care; or

Have premises where new employment opportunities will be created; or

Must bring social, environmental or economic benefit to the community; or

Contribute to the sustainable development of the borough.

A formal application from the ratepayer will be required in each case and any relief will be granted 
in line with state aid requirements.

Discretionary relief – Localism Act 2011

Section 69 of the Localism Act 2011 allows a local authority to grant discretionary relief in any 
circumstances where it feels fit. having regard to the effect on the council tax payers of its area.

The provision is designed to give authorities flexibility in granting relief where it is felt that to 
do so would be of benefit generally to the area and be reasonable given the financial effect to 
council tax payers.

The government has not issued guidance in respect of how this power might be used except 
advising that relief “may be granted in any circumstances where a local authority sees fit, 
having regard to the effect on council tax payers in the area”. 

The English Guide to the Act addresses this as follows:

Our policy on awarding relief under The Localism Act 2011 is that any ratepayer applying for relief 
under these provisions which does not meet the criteria for existing relief (charities, community 
amateur sports clubs) and not-for-profit making organisations), must meet all of the following 
criteria and the amount of relief granted will be dependent on the following key factors:

The ratepayer must also;

5.3

Pack Page 18



Financial matters6

The cost of relief awarded will be borne in accordance with the Business Rates Retention Scheme 
share - namely 50% borne by central government, 40% by the council, 9% by Hampshire County 
Council and 1% by Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service.

The award of Discretionary Rate Relief will be state aid compliant
 
The issue of rate reliefs being considered as qualifying as state aid is now of some significance and 
is briefly explained in the “Rate Relief for Charities and other Non-Profit Making Organisations” 
guidance note issued by the ODPM in December 2002.

Broadly, any award of discretionary rate relief is subject to state aid de minimis limits.
The regulations allow an undertaking to receive up to €200,000 of de minimis aid in a 
three-year period (consisting of the current financial year and the two previous financial years).

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Provide residents of the borough with such services, opportunities or facilities that cannot 
be obtained locally or are not provided locally by another organisation; and

Must demonstrate that assistance (provided by the discretionary rate relief) will be for a short 
time only and that any business/operation is financially in the medium and long term; and

Must show that the activities of the organisation are consistent with the council’s plan.

Where a ratepayer can demonstrate that all the criteria are met, the period and value of relief 
granted will be solely at our discretion.

A formal application from the ratepayer will be required in each case and any relief will be 
granted in line with state aid requirements.

Cost of awarding relief

State aid

Pack Page 19



Council Offices,
Farnborough Road,
Farnborough,
Hants, GU14 7JU customerservices@rushmoor.gov.uk

www.rushmoor.gov.uk
01252 398 399

July 2018

@rushmoorcouncil

Rushmoor Borough Council
Pack Page 20



Application for Discretionary Rate Relief 

Blucando Ltd 

Unit 11, Farnborough Business Centre, Eelmoor Road, 
GU14 7XA 

Further information about Blucando Ltd can be found at https://www.blucando.it 

In their application, Blucando Ltd advise the following: - 

Premises that relief is being applied for. 

We currently occupy office space Unit 11, Farnborough Business Centre. 

We are taking on additional space in Farnborough Business Centre, extending into 
Unit 10, knocking through from our current space, Unit 11. 

Please describe the nature of your business. 

Blucando Ltd is comprised of two brands:  

1. Blucando - We provide IT support services to businesses UK-wide and residential
customers in Rushmoor and the surrounding towns.

2. Untold Gaming - A specialist in designing and building custom gaming PCs for all
levels; beginners to professional gamers

APPENDIX 2

Pack Page 21



For what purposes does the organisation use the premises? 
 
For both brands, we have:  
 
1. Office space for our admin and technical support teams  
2. Storage space for parts and equipment  
3. Workshop space for repairing, building, and deploying new computers 
 
Please provide information about how new employment opportunities will be 
created. 
 
We moved the business to the borough four years ago to be closer to the two great 
colleges in Farnborough. Since then, we have increased our headcount by 400%, 
with revenue growing to match. We have a loyal and positive following of businesses 
and residents throughout the borough and the surrounding area. We are involved 
with a number of initiatives with Farnborough College of Technology, Rushmoor 
Borough Council, DWP and Enterprise M3 to create opportunities for people starting 
or developing a career in IT. In addition to the below, we are considering launching 
an apprenticeship scheme in the next academic year.  
 
- We plan to take placement students from the new T-Level and traditional work 
experience 
- Three out of four current Kickstart vacancies are filled but we are having to hold off 
on the last position  
- We are poised to engage local secondary schools to offer work experience  
- We have three planned full-time vacancies to advertise before the end of the year  
 
Due to lack of space, we are unable to proceed. Once the additional office space is 
live in November, we will be able to accommodate more people. We have signed a 
new combined lease on Units 10 and 11 for 5 years. For our permanent roles, we 
are working with both local colleges, the local Job Centre and direct with DWP to 
identify candidates out of work in the area.  
 
Employment in one key area of the business is expected to be attractive to the local 
community; Untold Gaming is only 8 months old and growing fast. Part of our new 
space is to accommodate budding engineers to help fulfil demand, with this being a 
fantastic entry into the IT industry for school and college leavers. The market for 
dedicated gaming PCs and equipment grew 69.7% from 2019 to 2020 and similar 
growth is expected for the next five years, so we expect employment opportunities 
to increase in this sector in the South East, which has become the primary region 
for the UK gaming sector. https://ukie.org.uk/news/uk-games-industry-valuation-
2020 
 
Please give the reason for your application, including how the business brings 
social environmental or economic benefit to the borough and contributes 
towards the sustainable development of the borough? 
 
We are planning for 30% growth in new business over the next 18 months, 
supporting additional permanent roles. This potential rate relief allows us to 
accelerate our growth plans by bringing forward the required permanent vacancies 

Pack Page 22



to support the growth. This earlier investment of people will allow us capacity to 
develop new innovative services and target new business earlier than planned. This 
will require focus across the business but are conscious not to let this detract from 
our commitment to providing the afore mentioned opportunities and supporting the 
employment schemes. So, once again, this potential rate relief allows us the 
additional permanent roles required to support these people.  
 
Over the last four years, Blucando Ltd have been working hard to forge relationships 
with organisations focused on improving economic growth in Rushmoor.  
 
Our Managing Director, Ben Fielding, is the technology industry representative 
working with Farnborough College of Technology on the development of T-Level 
qualifications, as well as providing regular talks to the students on careers in IT and 
supporting the career fairs. This supports our goal of “hiring local” by default. With 
over third of our team from Rushmoor, and all but one living in directly neighbouring 
towns, we are keen to minimise unnecessary travel and ensure a good work/life 
balance.  
 
To support the local economy, we use local suppliers wherever possible sourced 
through local business networking events. One prime example is iPrint Anything in 
Northcamp, who have provided us with all our branding and printing needs for four 
years. Even for social events we favour businesses in the Rushmoor area, such as 
go-karting, evening drinks, meals and the occasional team reward of lunchtime 
pizza.  
 
An early adopter of the Kickstart scheme, we have been providing valuable feedback 
to DWP and working closely with the local Job Centre on raising the profile of these 
opportunities.  
 
We have a long-standing relationship with Enterprise M3, supporting a number of 
initiatives designed to support small businesses and start-ups. Our Managing 
Director is also working towards becoming a Growth Champion, and recently 
contributed to an advertising campaign for the Peer Support programme.  
 
We are also involved in the new Rushmoor Business Networking programme, 
designed to support raising the profile of other local businesses. This led to us being 
in talks with the committee at Fleet Spurs Football Club to provide sponsorship from 
both our Blucando and Untold Gaming brands. 
 
Finally, we have recently expressed interest in providing well-needed work 
experience opportunities to secondary schools in the borough and exploring how we 
can provide additional support to on-site learning. 
 
Please explain why you consider your business benefits local taxpayers. 
 
With our commitment to creating employment and experience opportunities in the 
borough, we believe that we are adding further value to local investment in education 
and the growth of opportunities in the technology industry.  
 

Pack Page 23



Taxpayers money that Rushmoor currently invests in these opportunities is being 
put to great use and Blucando are supportive of the initiatives in place.  
 
Our hope is we can assist by being be a focused resource for the borough, creating 
new opportunities in line with and building on the hard work already being done 
 
How many people are employed in the business, and of these employees, how 
many live locally in Rushmoor? 
 
At present there are 15 employees at Blucando Ltd of which 6 are resident locally. 
 
Are there any other businesses of a similar nature in the borough? 
 
Blucando - We are aware of a small number of companies offering IT support 
services to businesses, but they do not provide services to residential customers. 
We are also aware of a small number of micro-businesses providing services to 
residential customers but not businesses. In this respect, I believe we are unique in 
providing services to everyone in the borough.  
 
Untold Gaming - We are not aware of any professional businesses offering 
professional custom gaming PC design-and-build services. There are some people 
offering these services as sole traders. There are also others selling off-the-shelf 
prebuilt units but, again, not a custom design-and-build service.  
 
There is most definitely now a local business that provides all of the above services 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Pack Page 24



 

CABINET 
 

COUNCILLOR MARINA MUNRO  
PLANNING AND ECONOMY PORTFOLIO HOLDER  

14th December 2021 
 
KEY DECISION? NO 
 

 
REPORT NO. EPSH2135 

 
REPROVISIONING OF TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION 

 

 
SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The council utilises North Lane Lodge and Clayton Court as hostel 
accommodation. Both properties are leased temporarily from the Ministry of 
Defence (MOD) and are situated on Wellesley Development land; the council 
has use of these premises until September 2023.  
 
This report provides Cabinet with information on the demand for replacement 
hostel accommodation and an overview of the project plan to meet this demand 
at alternative premises for the target date of September 2023.  
 
It is recommended that Cabinet agrees the project plan and a supplementary 
estimate of £40,000 which is needed to fund legal and advisory costs, site 
surveys and due diligence work in support of delivering alternative 
accommodation. 
 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1. Section 188 of the 1996 Housing Act places a duty on local authorities to 

provide accommodation to homeless individuals and households if they 
have reason to believe (rather than being satisfied) that the applicant is 
homeless, eligible for assistance and has priority need.  

 
1.2. To meet its duty, the council works with Registered Housing Providers (RPs) 

to deliver a range of temporary accommodation with various levels of 
support. Two key buildings have been used to supply 54 units of temporary 
and emergency accommodation since 2017; North Lane Lodge is managed 
by The Society of St James (SSJ), it provides 9 units of high-level supported 
accommodation, Clayton Court is managed by Mears Plc and provides 45 
units of medium high-level supported accommodation. These buildings are 
located on the Wellesley site and leased by the MOD to SSJ and Mears. 
The leases will expire in September 2023 when the land will be redeveloped 
by Grainger Plc. 

  
1.3. To ensure residents have access to accommodation suitable to their needs, 

and to prevent street homelessness, alternative premises need to be 
identified, appraised and developed and a procurement process to include 
SSJ and Mears Plc will be undertaken to ensure the best service provider is 
appointed to manage the new premises and provide on-site support. 

Pack Page 25

AGENDA ITEM No. 4



 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND 

 
2.1. A detailed review of demand for hostel accommodation and the associated 

support levels needed has been undertaken, a breakdown is included in the 
attached appendix. This need analysis defines the supported hostel 
accommodation demand from September 2023 as 29 units. 

 
2.2. Of the 29 units identified ,10 units should be for high level support (stage 1) 

and provided together within one property, the remaining 19 units will 
provide a mix of 9 High level and 10 medium level support (stage 2). The 
Affordable Housing Delivery programme will provide opportunities to meet 
demand for general needs temporary accommodation where no support is 
needed. 

 
2.3. For clarification, the scope of High and Medium level support is summarised 

as: 
 
2.4. High Support (stage1): A nurturing environment where residents are 

supported through crisis and into recovery with Drug, Alcohol and Mental 
Health problems. Keyworker sessions take place in groups or individually. 
The support provider will liaise with other agencies such as Inclusion and 
Probation; they will ensure residents receive medical attention where 
needed and get to their appointments, protect them from those who would 
seek to take advantage of them or influence them away from recovery and 
making good decisions, and encourage residents in basic life skills including 
personal hygiene, cooking and laundry. It does not include personal or 
nursing care. 

 
2.5. Medium Support (stage 2): A supportive environment where residents are 

encouraged to develop skills to enable them to maintain a tenancy, to 
include budgeting, getting set up with benefits, debt management advice, 
rights and responsibilities of a tenancy, referrals and signposting to support 
services as required including agencies which assist with life and 
employment skills and opportunities. 

 
 
3. DETAILS OF THE PROPOSAL  
 

General 
 
3.1. The purpose of this project is to secure the delivery of 29 units of supported 

hostel accommodation across 2-3 sites with the appropriate support 
contract commissioned and up and running by September 2023. 

 
3.2. Existing providers have sought to secure alternative premises which has not 

been successful. The proposed project puts the council in control of site 
identification, analysis, potential site acquisition and the procurement of 
partners to carry out the development, deliver the project and provide an on-
site support contract by the September 2023 deadline. 

Pack Page 26



 

 
3.3. There are four key workstreams to mobilise the project. 

 
3.4. Site identification & analysis: Procurement is required to commission an 

appropriate organisation to find suitable sites and look at viability and be 
completed by March 2022.The budget for this work is circa £40,000 (drawn 
down over 2 years) to cover legal & advisory costs, site surveys and due 
diligence work. The professional advice services of the Local Government 
Advisor will cost £1500 + VAT. 
 

3.5. Potential Site acquisition: Council acquisition of suitable sites identified to 
be completed by June 2022 which will give a 15-month development 
programme (tbc subject to site analysis and acquisition strategy). Costs are 
dependent on sites identified and works needed, funding could be secured 
from the commuted sums pot which currently stands at £1.3million. Property 
and Legal resource will be needed. 
 

3.6. Procure RP partner: To develop the acquired hostel sites and to deliver on 
site support in the hostels. To include determining Supported Exempt 
revenue funding and requirement for Homelessness Prevention Grant 
Funding. The RP partner will deliver the hostel accommodation and the 
support contract into the hostel (s): To be in place by April 2022 Cost: 
Determined by site and Homes England (HE) Grant availability. Up to £200k 
p.a. of revenue funding from Homelessness Prevention Grant Funding 
(HPGF) is likely to be needed to cover non housing related support and 
supervision once the scheme is completed and operational. Resourcing: 
Legal Resource for contracts. 
 

3.7. Property Development Contract to be managed and delivered by RP 
partner. Programme duration June 2022-September 2023. The council’s 
ongoing input as key stakeholder. 

 
3.8. The project will mitigate the impact of the loss of key temporary 

accommodation buildings and enable the council to continue to fulfil its 
homelessness duties; to prevent homelessness and to supply interim 
accommodation. In addition, the delivery of professionally managed, 
purpose-built accommodation in suitable locations will benefit the wider 
residential and business communities, prevent increases in Bed and 
Breakfast costs and offer vulnerable people with complex problems the 
stability and support they need to recover and live safely in the borough. 

 
Capital and Revenue Funding 

 
3.9. This is not an income-generating project; capital will be needed to buy and 

adapt new accommodation; It is likely that working in partnership with an 
RP, capital could be secured through Homes England Grant funding. 
Rushmoor has £1.3 million of commuted sum funding which could be used 
to support this project; depending on the sites identified and development 
costs this could cover buying sites, be used to bridge viability and show the 
council’s commitment to the project in support of bids to Homes England. 

 

Pack Page 27



 

3.10. Revenue funding for the 29 units is delivered through Housing Benefit, using 
the Specified Exempt rent model where support levels are higher than a 
social or affordable rent to cover housing related support and supervision. 
Homelessness Prevention Grant Funding is used to cover non-housing 
related support and supervision. It is expected that this will be in the region 
of £200,000 each year, £6,896 for each individual accessing the service. 
The project is dependent on the continuing availability of Homelessness 
Prevention Grant Funding and the Supported Exempt rent model, the future 
of which are outside of the council’s control. 

 
Consultation 
 
3.11. Consultation has been carried out with the council’s Corporate Management 

Team and Property and Major Works Programme Board have been 
consulted as has the council’s Revenues and Benefits Manager who has 
confirmed that the revenue modelling proposed is correct. 

 
3.12. Procurement advice has been sought from Portsmouth City Council and 

ongoing support is available. Homes England have given their verbal 
support to bring forward new schemes with capital funding in partnership 
with an RP provider and Hampshire County Council Social Exclusion are 
supportive of the proposal and, depending on the structure of their budget 
funding proposal going forward, may be able to offer some revenue funding. 
 

3.13. Society of St James and Mears Plexus who manage the two existing 
buildings are aware of the challenges we have and are both keen to work 
with the council on the solution. 

 
 
4. IMPLICATIONS  
 

Risks 
 
4.1. The main risk is associated with not being able to deliver new 

accommodation within the defined timescales due to a lack of suitable 
alternative premises/ sites, difficulty procuring suitable partners and the 
long-term availability of Homelessness Prevention Grant Funding. The 
consequences of this would be increased street homelessness and the 
negative impact on individual street homeless people, council finances 
because of associated increased bed and breakfast costs, town centres and 
local businesses if people sleep rough in shop doorways. The council’s 
reputation would also be at risk.  

 
4.2. There is a risk to the Council that Homeless Prevention Grant is reduced or 

withdrawn by Government and/or that the Supported Exempt Model is 
removed or altered. If this occurs the revenue costs of the project would 
have to be borne by the General Fund. Allocations are made by Government 
on an annual basis. It is considered unlikely that the existing funding would 
be removed without an alternative given the commitment to end rough 
sleeping by 2024. However the level of funding is considered the primary 
risk. A reserve is held which would provide short term protection for 

Pack Page 28



 

approximately 2-3 years if funding was entirely lost or longer depending on 
the extent of any reduction.    
 
Legal Implications 

 
4.3. The council will be required to enter contracts for property acquisitions and 

service provision. 
 
4.4. Not delivering the accommodation impacts the council’s ability to meet its 

statutory duty under Section 188 of the 1996 Housing Act which could result 
in a legal challenge. 

 
Financial and Resource Implications 

 
4.5. A supplementary estimate of £40,000 is needed to fund legal and advisory 

costs, site surveys and due diligence work to progress the project.  
Consideration will be given by the Executive Head of Finance on the 
appropriate source of funding with the use of the Flexible Housing 
Earmarked reserve being likely but subject to confirmation. 

 
4.6. The council currently holds commuted sums of £1.3 million earmarked for 

the delivery of affordable housing, consideration will need to be given on its 
use to support the acquisition of suitable sites and will be determined on a 
site-by-site basis; commitment of commuted sums is delegated to the 
Portfolio Holder in consultation with the Head of Economy, Planning and 
Strategic Housing. 

 
4.7. Revenue funding of circa £200,000 per year will be made from 

Homelessness Prevention Grant Funding which is in place from the 
Department of Levelling Up Housing and Communities.  In the event of a 
change in the Grant allocations, conditions or discontinuation of the grant 
funding the Council would need to fund any shortfall through the General 
Fund revenue budget. 
 

4.8. The project is resourced through the Project & Programme Board internally 
and through the procurement of partner organisations to deliver the 
premises and the service. 

 
Equalities Impact Implications 

 
4.9. The project means that the most vulnerable will be receive the right 

accommodation and support for their needs and an improved opportunity to 
break the cycle of homelessness. This project, in providing a more bespoke 
housing solution than before, will enable more single women to access safe, 
hostel accommodation in the borough. 

 
Other 

 
4.10. Increased levels of street homelessness associated with not delivering the 

project could lead to increased rough sleeping and anti-social behaviour 
impacting the Town Centres particularly with adverse consequences for 

Pack Page 29



 

attracting people to them and the reputation of the places and the Council. 
This would also place added pressure on the community safety team.  

 
  
5. CONCLUSIONS 
 
5.1. The council’s leadership is essential to the reprovision of temporary 

accommodation to ensure the right properties are provided in the right 
places and to prevent street homelessness. Furthermore, the procurement 
of properly funded on- site support and supervision will give the borough’s 
most vulnerable residents the opportunity to recover from the issues that 
hold them in a cycle of homelessness. 

 
5.2. That Cabinet resolves to support the project proposals and agrees to a 

supplementary estimate of £40,000 to cover legal and advisory costs, site 
surveys and due diligence work so that the project can be initiated. 

 
5.3. That Cabinet resolves to support the project proposals and agrees to a 

supplementary estimate of £40,000 to cover legal and advisory costs, site 
surveys and due diligence work so that the project can be initiated. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
Rushmoor’s Housing and Homelessness Strategy 2017-22  
Rushmoor’s Rough Sleeping Strategy 2021-22 
 
 
 
CONTACT DETAILS: 
Report Author – Zoё Paine, Housing Strategy and Enabling Manager 
zoe.paine@rushmoor.gov.uk 01252 398687 
Head of Service – Tim Mills, Head of Economy, Planning and Strategic Housing 
tim.mills@rushmoor.gov.uk 01252 398542 

Pack Page 30



 1 

  
CABINET 
14 DECEMBER 2021 

COUNCILLOR MARTIN TENNANT 
MAJOR PROJECTS & PROPERTY   

PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
 
KEY DECISION:  YES/NO 
 

 
REPORT NO. ED 2102 

  
 
URGENT REPAIRS – PARTY WALL AT NOS. 35-39 HIGH STREET, ALDERSHOT 
 

 
SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Following the recent demolition activity for Union Yard, the party wall between the 
Union Yard development site and 35-39 High Street, Aldershot has been found to 
be in need of urgent repair. An urgency decision has been taken by the Executive 
Director in accordance with the Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules, 
Arrangements for Urgency and Exceptions Sections (1) and (3). The purpose of 
this report is for Cabinet to note the Record of Executive Decision and the proposed 
approach for funding the works.    
 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is for Cabinet to note the Record of Executive 

Decision in relation to urgent works required to a party wall between 35-39 
High Street, Aldershot and the Union Yard development site. 

 
2. DETAILS  

 
2.1 A decision has been made to enable urgent works to be undertaken to the 

party wall between 35-39 High Street Aldershot. The record of Executive 
Decision is set out as the Appendix to this report for noting by Cabinet. 

 
2.2 Consultation has been carried out with the Council’s Executive Leadership 

Team and relevant Portfolio Holders and the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in accordance with the Council’s Access to Information Procedure 
Rules, Arrangements for Urgency and Exceptions Sections (1) and (3)  
 

2.3 Consultation has also been conducted with the Council’s tenants including 
Citizen Advice and  the works are being undertaken as far as possible to 
reduce disruption to the users of the building. 

 
 
  

  

Pack Page 31

AGENDA ITEM No. 5



 2 

 
3. Risks 
 
3.1  While the building overall is stable there is a risk that the works in themselves 

cause damage to 35-39 High Street. The statement of works sets out the best 
approach to ensure this risk is minimised. The works will be insured by the 
Council. 

 
3.2 There is a risk that the works are not completed quickly enough and that there 

is a consequential delay with the Union Yard development which incurs 
additional costs. 

 
4. Legal Implications 
 
4.1 The contracts will be issued in accordance with industry standards and 

procured within the Council’s procurement arrangements for an urgent 
decision 

 
5. Financial and Resource Implications 
 
5.1 The estimated cost of all the works is expected to be up to £200,000. The 

Executive Head of Finance is proposing that the works be funded from capital 
receipts received during the financial year to prevent any impact on the 
Council’s revenue budget and avoid the need for additional capital borrowing. 
If this approach is changed then this will be reported as part of the next 
budget monitoring report. 

 
6. Equalities Impact Implications 
 
6.1 There are no equalities impact implications as a result of this decision. 

 
  
7.  CONCLUSION 

 
5.1 The works set out in the Record of Executive Decision are essential to stabilise 

the wall and to enable the Union Yard development to proceed. Cabinet are 
requested to note the decision made and the proposed funding of the works. 

 
 
 
CONTACT DETAILS: 
 
Report Author – Karen Edwards, Executive Director 
Karen.edwards@rushmoor.gov.uk 
 
 

Pack Page 32



 

 
RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL 

RECORD OF EXECUTIVE DECISION  
 

 
Decision taken by individual Cabinet Member / Officer (delete as appropriate) 

 

(All sections must be completed (mark “N/A” as applicable)) 

 
DECISION MAKER (Name and designation) 
 
Karen Edwards, Executive Director 
 
 

 
DECISION AND THE REASON(S) FOR IT  
 
To award contracts to Hill Partnerships Limited and another suitably qualified contractor (to be 
confirmed) to undertake urgent works to an exposed wall at 35-39 High Street Aldershot.  
 
This decision follows consultation with the Council’s Executive Leadership Team and relevant Portfolio 
Holders on 29 and 30 November and Coucnillor Mike Smith (Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
10 December in accordance with the Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules, Arrangements for 
Urgency and Exceptions Sections (1) and (3) 
 
The wall is a party wall between 35-39 High Street (A building owned by the Council) and the Union Yard 
Construction Site. 
 
The party wall uncovered during the demolition works to the Union Yard site has been discovered to be in 
extremely poor condition. It appears that the building at 39 High Street was not constructed in accordance 
with approved drawings when it was built approximately 20 years ago.  
 
The main issues are: 
 

• Remains of the party wall in very poor condition with severely rotting timber grounds still in place  

• Joist support pockets empty and unrepaired and the wall was not tied into the front or rear facades  

• Some lose masonry appears to have been wedged into gaps that could easily let go and fall at any 
moment,  

• Less than half of the anchors (wall ties) between the party wall and new steel frame appear to have 
been inserted  

• The wall itself is some 60mm away from the frame, not a nominal distance as per the design.  

• On the plus side, there is no apparent risk to the front façade brickwork as it is appropriately tied to 
the structural frame.  

 
To ensure the stability of the wall was not compromised, piling activities on the Union Yard development in 
the vicinity of the wall have been halted. This will result in potential delays, but the project team are working 
closely with Hill Partnerships to minimise delays and potential impact on costs to the main contract. 
 
The Council’s Property Team have instructed structural engineers C & W to represent RBC. An interim 
structural condition report was issued on 12 November. The final report was received on 2 December with 
recommendations setting out the solution to deal with the unstable wall. Further discussion have continued 
following receipt of this report to clarify the specification of the required works. 
 
Hill Partnerships who are the Council’s main contractor for the Union Yard development cannot undertake 
the repair works under the existing Union Yard contract as their insurance company will not provide 
insurance cover. The reasons for this is that the works are not within the Union Yard site, and they do not 
insure works of this nature. 
 
The solution is therefore that Hill Partnerships erect scaffolding and undertake the repair works under a 
separate works contract under the Council’s insurance cover.  
 
Some internal propping works will be required inside 35-39 High Street, and this will be undertaken by one 
of the Council’s existing framework contractors. Pack Page 33



Pack Page 34


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	3 BUSINESS RATES - DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF APPLICATION
	4 REPROVISIONING OF TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION
	5 REPORT OF URGENCY DECISION - NOS. 35-39 HIGH STREET, ALDERSHOT
	Urgent repairs - party wall at Nos. 35-39 High Street, Aldershot - Record of Executive Decision




